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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 to our
shareholders and investors.

The macro-economic environments have been volatile during
2023 due to a series of global events including tightened
monetary policies, inflationary pressure, interest rate hikes,
ongoing geopolitical tensions and China property developers’
debt issues. These has led to a weakened business confidence
and the businesses have tighten their budget on marketing and
advertisement expenses.

The Group will remain resilient and is cautiously optimistic of
our business. We expanded to develop the business related to
the sales and marketing of fast moving customer goods and
luxury products during 2023. The new businesses are expected
to create synergies with the existing advertising business and
diversify our business portfolio in response to the volatilizing
market.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
delivery success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$23,550,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing a decrease of approximately 32% from approximately
HK$34,645,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group recorded total gross profit of approximately HK$6,375,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease
of approximately 74% from approximately HK$24,112,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$73,721,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 compared to the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$10,104,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. Loss per share of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 was approximately HK$12.37 cents. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) exhibition and trade show
business and related services; (i) publications and advertising
business including print and online advertising, sales of
publications, advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising; (i) online sales of beauty and cosmetics
products; and (iv) sales of luxury products.

Publications and Advertising Business

During the year, the Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
and Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which has a wide range of readership by covering different
areas including Macau daily local news as well as Hong
Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc.. As at the date of this annual report,
the distribution points of Exmoo News in Macau covering
commercial buildings, luxury apartments, banks, airport
and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre, car parks,
universities and governmental offices, etc. and Exmoo News
is one of the publications with highest circulation and widest
coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure fortnightly
magazine (published alternate Friday) published in Macau
which provides comprehensive information to readers
relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and entertainment
in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in Hong Kong
and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau. In addition
to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and Hong
Kong, Travel Macau also provides website version, digital
social media platforms such as Facebook page and WeChat
platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is a fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue generated
from the publications and advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$9,109,000, decreased from approximately
HK$33,538,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Exhibition and Trade Show Business and Related
Services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no revenue generated
from the exhibition and trade show business and related services
compared with approximately HK$1,107,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Online Sales of Beauty and Cosmetics Products

The Group has been diversifying its revenue stream by acquiring
a company specified in online sales of beauty and cosmetics
products on 1 April 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue generated
from online sales of beauty and cosmetic products amounted to
approximately HK$11,321,000.

Sales of Luxury Products

The Group expanded to develop the business related to sales and
marketing of luxury products during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue generated
from sales of luxury products amounted to approximately
HK$3,120,000.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2024, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Total revenue decreased by approximately 32% from
approximately HK$34,645,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately HK$23,550,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023. It was mainly due to the reduced demand of
advertisement in Macau market. The revenue generated from
publications and advertising business decreased by 73% to
approximately HK$9,109,000 as compared with approximately
HK$33,538,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

No revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition and
trade show business and related services for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit decreased by approximately 74% from
approximately HK$24,112,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately HK$6,375,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease in the gross profit was mainly due
to the shrinkage of publications and advertising business and
outdoor advertising business.

Other Income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$2,052,000 from
approximately HK$2,206,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately HK$154,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
one-off nature of subsidies granted under the Employment
Support Scheme by The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government and incentive subsidy for technology
modernisation by the Government Information Bureaus of The
Macau Special Administrative Region Government in 2022, while
no such subsidies granted in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Other (Losses) or Gains, Net

Other losses is recorded approximately HK$56,802,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023, compared with the other gains
of approximately HK$2,055,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into a Subcontracting Agreement (“Subcontracting Agreement”)
with a contracting party (“Prime Contractor”) whereby certain
advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities
are subcontracted to Tiance Cultural Communication Limited
(“Tiance Cultural”), a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to which
the Prime Contractor would subcontract the right of usage of the
advertisement spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai, namely
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge Macau Section Passenger
Clearance Building to Tiance Cultural for a term of 65 months from
1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025 with monthly Subcontracting
Fee of HK$1,500,000 (“Monthly Service Fee”) pay to the Prime
Contractor in conducting its publication and advertising business.

With effective from 30 April 2023, Tiance Cultural and the Prime
Contractor agreed to terminate the Subcontracting Agreement
with immediate effect. Whereby, the Prime Contractor reserves
the right to receive from Tiance Cultural, and Tiance Cultural is
obliged to pay the Prime Contractor the Monthly Subcontracting
Fee for the remaining term of the Subcontracting Agreement
which Tiance Cultural was unfulfilled. As a result, a provision
of approximately HK$37,489,000 was made, with reference
to the Monthly Subcontracting Fee and remaining term of the
Subcontracting Agreement which Tiance Cultural is required
to fulfill. In additional, the deposit paid of approximately
HK$10,480,000 was forfeited and contract cost of HK$6,000,000
was written off under the terms of the Subcontracting Agreement.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
8% from approximately HK$12,380,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately HK$11,360,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,198,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023, compared
to approximately HK$2,064,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income Tax

No income tax expense for the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023, compared to approximately HKS$NIl for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the Company
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$73,721,000.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2023. The share capital of
the Company only comprises ordinary shares.
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As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current assets mENE 38,747 50,241
Current liabilities mEERE 70,709 32,134
Current ratio VLB S 0.5 1.6

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 0.5 times as compared to approximately 1.6 times
as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$3,552,000 (2022: approximately
HK$1,908,000).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings over

shareholders’ fund, was approximately 29% as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 38%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DM

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The carrying amount of trade receivables decreased from
approximately HK$33,997,000 (net of expected credit losses of
HK$3,940,000) to HK$25,436,000 (net of expected credit losses
of HK$15,770,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the trade receivable turnover days decreased from approximately
358 days for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
217 days for the year ended 31 December 2023. All outstanding
trade receivable balances are reviewed by the Group’s sales
and marketing department on a monthly basis to ensure that
any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and appropriate
collection actions are taken.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant capital commitments as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability (2022: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not
have other significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year,
except for the acquisition of 50.1% of the issued share capital of
Yantic Limited on 1 April 2023, the details of which was disclosed
in Note 40 of the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material pledge of
assets.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 13 (2022: 17) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2023, amounted to approximately HK$7,158,000
(2022: approximately HK$7,171,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars relating to
publication business and offer options that may be granted to
the employees under the share option scheme. The Group pays
commission to its sales and marketing staff which is calculated
based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified in their
respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly sales
solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material event affecting the Group need to be reported
to the Shareholders that has occurred after the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 up to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEREFT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 42, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Group on 16 October 2019 and re-designed as
executive Director of the Group since 4 April 2023. Mr. Lui is
also the executive director of Imperium Financial Group Limited
(a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8029). Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in business
studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004
and obtained a Master of Commerce degree from Macquarie
University in 2005. Mr. Lui has over 10 years of experience in
securities and financial institutions. He is experienced in managing
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 43, was appointed as executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Hung has over
10 years of experience in media and advertisement industries.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism and
Communication from Chu Hai University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Communicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yuk, aged 53, obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1996. He was admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2004
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in August 2005. Since December 2019, Mr. Wong
has been serving as company secretary of XXF Group Holdings
Limited, an established automobile rental service provider. In
addition, since December 2019, Mr. Wong has been serving as
an independent non-executive director of Hygieia Group Limited,
a cleaning service provider listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(stock code: 1650), where he has been primarily responsible for
providing independent opinion and judgement to the board of
directors. Since August 2022, Mr. Wong has been serving as an
executive director of Tian Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code:
2110) (formerly known as Yue Kan Holding Limited), Mr. Wong is
primarily be responsible for financial management and assisting to
manage the day-to-day business operations.

From May 2017 to February 2019, Mr. Wong was a senior
consultant of Huanian Xinxing Chanye Jituan Company Limited*
(FEFHBEZEEBER A A, nvolved in project management
and financial consultation services. From May 2015 to January
2017, Mr. Wong was the company secretary of Success Dragon
International Holdings Limited ( f 38 B4 X %= fx B BB 2 7)), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1182), which was principally engaged in the provision
of management services for electronic gaming equipment.
Between December 2010 and June 2012, Mr. Wong was the
chief financial officer and company secretary of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (3& A # B % & & R A &), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2789),
where he was primarily responsible for financing and investor
relations affairs. From November 2006 to November 2010, Mr.
Wong was the chief financial officer and company secretary of
China Qilfield Technology Services Group Limited, a company
listed on the mainboard of the Singapore Stock Exchange (stock
code: COFT), which was principally engaged in the business of
enhanced oil recovery (EOR) technology and sales of oil extraction
equipment. Mr. Wong started his career in KPMG Hong Kong in
September 1996 and left the firm as a senior accountant in April
1999. Mr. Wong also worked in various financial and accounting
related roles for a number of Hong Kong listed companies from
October 1999 to October 2005 both in Hong Kong and the PRC,
including subsidiaries of the Swire Group, Hong Kong and China
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ESEREFT

Gas Company Limited and Lung Kee Metal Ltd., respectively. Mr.
Wong has extensive practical experience in corporate governance
and business exposure across industry sectors in automobile,
construction, electronic gaming equipment, investment and
financial consultation, IT solution, manufacturing, oil and gas,
public utilities and professional audit.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019.
Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secretarial services experience in Hong
Kong. She obtained a master degree of arts in parent education
and a professional diploma in guidance and counselling from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in
early childhood education from The Hong Kong Baptist University
and a bachelor degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a staff
accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August 1996.
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Mr. Lin Zexin, aged 38, has been studying for a Ph.D. in Applied
Finance at the University of Malaya since 2020. He is currently
a doctoral candidate. From 2013 to 2015, he obtained an MBA
degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong and,
as an exchange student, studied Innovative Entrepreneurship
Management at the University of California, Berkeley. Mr. Lin was
one of the first to obtain the level two certificate of the Shenzhen-
Hongkong-Macau FinTech Professional Program. He also holds
FRM and AFP certificates, as well as the Certification of Fund
Professional. He took the special training courses (Innovation
and Technology in Finance Course and the Financial Technology
Course) provided by the 2022 Shenzhen Financial Key Talent
Training Program series, with his group papers winning the first
prize and the third prize respectively. He also participated in the
Hong Kong “Thousand Young Key Talent Training Program”
organized by the Liaison Office of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China, the All-China Youth Federation and
the Central Party School. From 2020 to 2022, Mr. Lin founded the
companies Shenzhen Boshi International Technology Education
Co., Ltd* CRYIE L EE R K E B R & £ 2 7)) and Wang
Jinxin Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (ZRi& &I (FINAE
R & L/A 7). Since 2019, he has served as a research assistant
for Professor Ma Xufei of Tsinghua University and participated in
research on listed companies and management case studies as
well as publication.

In addition, Mr. Lin is a committee member (the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region) of the All China Youth Federation,
the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Quality Talent Association,
a director of the International Teochew Youth Federation, and a
member of the Youth Committee of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Ltd.. Mr. Lin has extensive professional
knowledge and experience in the fields of finance and corporate
management.
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Ms. Liu Xiaomin, aged 37, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Directors of the Group since 12 March 2024.
Ms. Liu has over 10 years of experience in banking and capital
management. She obtained a master degree in business
administration from Heriot-Watt University in 2023 and a bachelor
degree in property management from Jinan University in 2012.
She obtained the qualification certificate of fund practitioners and
securities practitioners in PRC.

Ms. Liu has been working as senior wealth advisor of Zhongrong
International Trust Co., Ltd. since March 2019, she is responsible
for serving individual high-net-worth, private enterprises, insurance
companies and state-owned enterprises in the allocation of
capital management. She worked as securities affairs manager
of Shenzhen Zhouming Technology Co., Ltd. from 2023 to 2024.
She was responsible for supervising and managing the company’s
securities affairs, including but not limited to, securities issuance,
domestic and foreign listings and equity financing. She also
worked as VIP wealth manager of Ping An Bank Co Ltd Shenzhen
Branch from March 2013 to February 2019, responsible for
serving high-net-worth client.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

*

For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employees’ well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee health
and safety, (i) labour standards, (iii) intellectual property (“IP”)
rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption. These
aspects had already been managed by the Group and the Group
will continue to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for advancing its environmental, social and governance
management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 26% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2023 and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 12%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 80%
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 24%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company
or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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EEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
(re-designed from independent non-executive director
on 4 April 2023)

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Mr. Wong Yuk (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Lin Zexin (appointed on 12 April 2023)

Ms. Liu Xiaomin (appointed on 12 March 2024)

Mr. Lee Man Yeung (resigned on 12 March 2024)
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip (resigned on 12 April 2023)

In accordance with Article 84(1), three directors will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies except for the acquisition of 50.1% of the issued share
capital of Yantic Limited on 1 April 2023, the details of which was
disclosed in Note 40 of the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015, under which the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The
Share Option Scheme will expire on 16 February 2025. For further
details, please refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 16 October 2019, all of the share options granted have
been cancelled.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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(A) Interest in Shares of the Company (A) RAEDQTRMGHES

Approximate

percentage of

issued Share

Interest Capital of

Name of Director Capacity in Shares the Company
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EEpng 54 RIRG KR BHBED

Mr. Lui Man Wah Interests in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 343,300 (L) 0.06%

AN ESE 2y A E R ()
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these Shares,
of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation International
Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share capital of
Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has 622,080,000
Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2023 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) to subscribe for Shares of the Company
granted/exercisable under the share option scheme of
the Company are disclosed in the section “Share Option
Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have the following
interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the

FERRREMALRAE QTR RIEE
BROHERRHKR

MR2023%12A31H » LEEMAM - TIIAL
(RRBEFREEITHABRIN BE LB
TERE EBA N AR B IRN AR PR IE
ﬁ‘%‘}&ﬁﬁfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ XVEBE2 K30 #pAE R A

KB - SRBRCERN AR BIRIEE 75 N ]

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and “"{lﬂﬁlj%s%{l;kfgE’]i’fpaﬂiﬁa’j‘r@ N
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded %2 :
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:
Long positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares RO SEBERD TR
Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Underlying shareholding
Name Nature of interest Shares interests Note
BRAD R AE
wE,/ LB EmME HERHHE BHABES M
Muhammad Shaifadila Binti Beneficial owner 39,376,000 (L) 6.33% 1

EnEAA
Note:

1. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has 622,080,000 shares in
issues.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December
2023.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any connected
transaction which is subject to the disclosure requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date
of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period
have been audited by Jon Gepsom CPA Limited (formerly known
as McM (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution to re-appoint Jon Gepsom CPA Limited
and to authorize the Directors to fix their remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LUI MAN WAH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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SREERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year, the Company had been in compliance with the
CG Codes as set out in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the provision detailed below:

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors, and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at
all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”) as named below. An updated list of the
Directors identifying their roles and functions is posted on GEM’s
website and the Company’s website from time to time.

Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
(re-designed from independent non-executive director
on 4 April 2023)

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Mr. Wong Yuk (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Lin Zexin (appointed on 12 April 2023)

Ms. Liu Xiaomin (appointed on 12 March 2024)

Mr. Lee Man Yeung (resigned on 12 March 2024)
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip (resigned on 12 April 2023)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.
There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships) among members of the
Board.
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SREERE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and delegated
to management or Board committees. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to management while reserving
certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval and monitoring
of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and business plans;
and overseeing and evaluating the performance of the Group. It
is also responsible for promoting the success of the Group and
its businesses by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.
Board committees for specific functions are also set up to ensure
efficient Board operations. The composition and functions of
each Board committee and their major roles and functions are
described below. The final decision still rests with the Board
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of the
relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Codes, the Company has adopted diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board,
committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2023:

ERERRE

ARAREFEZTGZTEMEELERE -
BEETRRMER - Fik - ERBEER
HEZR - KL MBRRBER o KRFTR
HARREEESXBEAL AT EEEH
FRE RBRAERENEBEREAKBRE
BERNES MMELHNERME

EENEBNHERR

TREAREELFEREZ2023F12 A31H 1H8F
BFEEERTHESSRZECSHURBEKR
SHIER

Corporate
Governance
and Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management General
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
bEER
EREE
EZe ENZBE REZET FMzag zZgg e N-f
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah(! BXEEED 1717 N/A T 4/4 4/4 il N
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin B E 1717 NATER O NATER O NATEA NATER 1
Mr. Wong Yuk® TREED i N/A T N/A TR N/A T N/A T 1N
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTES
Directors
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BTRIT 1717 4/4 4/4 4/4 4/4 N
Mr. Lin Zexin® MERELO 1010 3/3 17 17 NATER 17
Mr. Lee Man Yeung® FHELE 1717 4/4 4/4 4/4 1 1
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Phiip® BEERLLO 7 11 33 2/2 1M NATER
Ms. Liu Xiaomin et NARER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Notes: PitsE
(1) Mr. Lui Man Wah was re-designed from independent non-executive (1) BN ZEHAEN2023F4 A4 AR VB IEHTT

director to executive director of the Company on 4 April 2023.

2) Mr. Wong Yuk was appointed as executive director of the Company on
31 May 2023.

©)) Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 12 April 2023.

(4) Mr. Lin Zexin was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 12 April 2023.

5) Mr. Lee Man Yeung resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on12 March 2024.

6) Ms. Liu Xiaomin was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 12 March 2024.

EXREANTES -

2  EBEAER2023F5 A1 HEZERRAFHNITE
g

() BEBELAEN2023F4 A 128 BHTAR T B IEH
TESE -

(4)  MBZALAEN2023F4A12BEZ T AAR BB
FEHITESE -

(6)  EELAEN2024F3 A 12 B BHIA DA B IEH
TESE -

6) BIEEHZTN2024F3A12BEZ T AAR BB
FEIITESE -

TERO=FFR EREEER)ARAT
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company held
an annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the shareholders on 29
June 2023 and was attended by all Directors, namely Mr. Lui Man
Wah, Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, Mr. Wong Yuk, Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr.
Lin Zexin and Mr. Lee Man Yeung in person or through electrical
means.

The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INED presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference was
discussed. The Board committee members would receive notice,
agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in advance
of each meeting in accordance with the CG Codes and respective
terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors will be arranged
and reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in

REE2023F12A31HILFE » 20BN
THEBSESERRERALETOEEATIR
EZLTRAIZEEZAG B MBEHEZ

compliance with the requirement of the CG Codes on continuous &3
professional development:
Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws,
Rules & Regulations
EERBIEE -
RAIRER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Lui Man Wah AXELE v
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRfESTAE v
Mr. Wong Yuk Fra%E v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. Wong Chi Ling BRIt v
Mr. Lin Zexin WESEE v
Mr. Lee Man Yeung BXFERAE v
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip EERLAE v
BOARD COMMITTEE EEZER

The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee (“CGRM
Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph D.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady), Mr. Lin Zexin and Ms.
Liu Xiaomin have appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review
the quarterly, half yearly and the annual results. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing of the
financial results of the Group, the accounting principles, the
scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and
its independence, and be responsible for all the matters relating
to the continuing connected transaction of the Company. The
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted
by the Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that the
disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s quarterly,
interim and annual reports comply with the applicable accounting
standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph E1 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Lin Zexin (Chairman),
Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Ms. Liu Xiaomin.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, four meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the structure and
policy of remuneration of the Group and approve the remuneration
package of Directors. The emoluments of the Directors are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee according to the
Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual performance and
prevailing market conditions.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Lin Zexin and Ms. Liu
Xiaomin.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, the
Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on nomination, rotation
and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the independence
of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out
in Directors’ Attendance at Board and General Meetings section
above.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
criteria for selection and process of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the nomination policy, in assessing and selecting
a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be considered
including but not limited to the following:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- Commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. ldentify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
as a Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of sKills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth. In
accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse Board
will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional
and industry experience, background, race, gender and other
qualities of the Directors. These differences will be considered
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while considering diversity
(including gender diversity).
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Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in risk
management functions. As at the date of this annual report, the
CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman), Ms.
Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Lin Zexin and Ms. Liu Xiaomin.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor, Jon Gepsom CPA Limited, in respect of the audit and

ERERRE

HZE2023F 12 A1 HILFE » BEZKLIEHFEZ
RSB,/ B ZEMTEE(BS)estiis

non-audit services are as follows: BEIBRARIMNERNT
2023
20234
HK$’000
FHT
Audit services FEZRES 880
REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE LM

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the remuneration of the
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2023
by band is as follows:

BTG EE1.50% » NEEEF Z2023F12
A31B It FERSEE YN SHREREAB (K
NEIEEBRINBFENT -

Number of
Remuneration individual(s)
Fr i AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,00078 7T 4

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need to
be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and gives
their recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible
for reviewing the internal audit report and approving policies and
procedures designed by the management.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group does not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2023 and
2022.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.
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In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 31% (2022: 24%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 76% (2022: 81%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would not
result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2023 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.
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Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure
policy aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and
senior management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant
to applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
by publication of the announcement to the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable
the public to access the latest information of the Group, unless
such information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.
The management has notified all employees to comply with the
disclosure policy. Briefing and training on the implementation of
the policy have been provided to Directors, officers and senior
management of the Group. The Board emphasizes that only the
authorised representatives registered in the Stock Exchange are
authorised to speak on behalf of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the consolidated financial statements are in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO ADDRESS
RELEVANT DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s report
contained on page 48 to 51 of the Annual Report, the auditor
of the Company, Jon Gepsom CPA Limited (“Auditor”), had
disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has taken actions to address the relevant audit
qualifications. Actions taken by the Company to address relevant
disclaimer of opinion in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
below:

Going Concern

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and financial position of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group wiill
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity position and to improve the Group’s financial position
which include, but are not limited to, the following:

()  The Group is negotiating with its subcontractor for
a favorable term in settling the Group’s obligation of
approximately HK$37,489,000 arose from early termination
of a subcontracting agreement;

(i)  The Group is negotiating with its lenders in seeking for
the extension of repayments of all borrowings, including
principals and interests in default; and

(i) The Group is actively negotiating with external parties to
obtain new sources of financing to finance the Group’s
working capital and improve the liquidity position.
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The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group for a period covered not less than twelve
months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements. Based on the cash flow forecast which has assumed
the successful implementation of the above measures, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the next twelve months from the date of
approval for the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows through the successful outcome of these measures.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, and to provide for any further liabilities that
may arise. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion
relating to going concern, the management views on going
concern and the action plan of the Group, and concurs with the
Board’s view.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

Mr. Yu Ngai confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

Mr. Yu Ngai is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expense
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.

Contact information of the Company is set out as follows:

Principle Office: Unit No. 16, 28/F, One Midtown, 11 Hoi Shing
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and senior
management are ready to respond to enquiries from Shareholders
and investors on a timely basis.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Shareholders approved the adoption of the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association, which came
into effect on 29 June 2023. The existing memorandum and
articles of association are published on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

Actual and expected financial performance;

Cash flow situation;

The Group’s business and operations; and

- Economic conditions and other factors.
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<P

Jon Gepsom CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”),
set out on pages 52 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As explained in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$74,661,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023, and as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$31,962,000
and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by HK$29,684,000.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of business.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due, which are set out in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends on the successful realisation
of these measures, to finance the working capital of the Group as
and when needed, which is subject to multiple uncertainties.

Due to the significance of the uncertainties relating to the ongoing
availability of finance to the Group, we disclaim our opinion in
respect of the material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Jon Gepsom CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Practising Certificate Number: PO6633
Room 03-05, 10/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEeEskAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfsE FET FAT
Revenue e 5 23,550 34,645
Cost of sales SHERA (17,175) (10,533)
Gross profit EAH 6,375 24,112
Other income EAuA 7 154 2,206
Other (losses) or gains, net HAth (B518) sz $ 58 8 (56,802) 2,055
Operating expenses R (11,360) (12,380)
Impairment loss recognised under the ~ TEHA(E EEERE R T HER
expected credit loss model KB (EE1E (11,830) (3,899)
Finance costs BB R A 9 (1,198) (2,064)
(Loss)/profit before tax BrEi AT (E518), s Al 10 (74,661) 10,030
Income tax FriS#i 11 - -
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive X (18) %F R 2MH
(expense)/income for the year (Bx%) WEHBE (74,661) 10,030
(Loss)/profit for the year FEEFER(ER),
attributable to: by |
— Owners of the Company —KRRNBIHEEA (73,721) 10,104
— Non-controlling interests — IR (940) (74)
(74,661) 10,030
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EBEERNZEBEX),
income for the year attributable to: WEs4a%E .
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE PN (73,721) 10,104
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE (940) (74)
(74,661) 10,030
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE) BR
- Basic (HK cents) —EARCEMW) 14 (12.37) 2.00
— Diluted (HK cents) —#ECEI) N/A i N/A 73 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

At 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FHExT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E LY 16 1,043 1,410
Goodwill SRS 17 905 1,399
Intangible assets EmEEE 18 330 330
Contract costs BRI 21 - 591
Other deposits Hiiz & 20 - 9,889
2,278 13,619
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Eay 23 1,404 =
Trade, other receivables and other B 5 R E AR EIE &
deposits HEfhize 20 32,309 40,811
Contract costs B HIFKAR 21 73 6,097
Amount due from a shareholder JE W —Z AR R FIA 29 1,379 1,379
Amount due from a non-controlling JE U —FEI B B 2 B SRR
shareholder of a subsidiary IR RIE 29 30 46
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 22 3,552 1,908
38,747 50,241
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAMERNFRIE 24 24,550 19,121
Provision B 26 37,489 =
Contract liabilities eHasE 25 8 856
Loan from a substantial shareholder FTEREER 27 2,859 12,157
Other borrowings HALER 28 5,800 -
Amount due to a director of a subsidiary BN —ZHBAREEHRE 29 3 -
70,709 32,134
Net current (liabilities)/assets REN(BE) EEFHE (31,962) 18,107
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) BEFE (29,684) 31,726
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

At 31 December 2023 72202312 H31H

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfsE FH&T AT
Capital and reserves ERR G
Share capital [iE%N 30 12,442 10,368
Reserves e (40,121) 21,621
(Capital deficiency)/total equity RNTEE AEN
attributable to owners of the (BAREH),RHEE
Company (27,679) 31,889
Non-controlling interests VAR A (2,005) (163)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BEAXEH) e (29,684) 31,726

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 167 were 528 &£ F167 B A4 4 B HRERIN2024FE3 A

N =]

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 28 H K EE et i RIZHE TR W HIATESHA

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: REHEE
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
RERME B
Director Director
EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated ~ BEFI B sHiE A 47 & B 7 R R AR 25 ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LG N

Non-
Share Share Statutory Capital Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests  Total equity
FER
R ROEE  iERG @ ERRG  ZHEE gt Bi  EGAR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T Thn Thx i i T T Thn
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Mek@) (W)
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1A 8,640 94,331 49 7,591 (96,602) 14,009 (89) 13,920
lssuance of new shares by~ MAEREAAB(THR
way of placing, net of MREIRE
issue costs 1,728 6,048 - - - 7,776 - 7,776
Total comprehensive Fh2EhE/ ()
income/ (expenses) for gt
the year = = = = 10,104 10,104 (74) 10,030
At31December2022and  12022F12A31B &
1 January 2023 2028F151A 10,368 100,379 49 7,591 (86,498) 31,889 (163) 31,726
lssuance of new sharesby ~ DAERE A ETHIR -
way of placing, net of MERAIE
issue costs (Note 30) (R3ka0) 2,074 12,079 - - - 14,153 = 14153
Acquisition of asubsiciary ~ WE—RHEAT
(Note 40) (Rizk40) = o s s - - (902) (902)
Total comprehensive EREERRES
expenses for the year = - - - (73,721) (73,721) (940) (74,661)
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31R 12,442 112,458 49 (160,219 (27,679 (2,005) (29,684)
Notes: BiieE
(@  Inaccordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the  (a)  RIEBPIEEMAEI77IE - AN B EBRPIEMAL
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer BB B A B8 S F 2 41 R B 25 % B8 B 2 A TE
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve % EEFESNEAEENS% - EAAIFE
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The i - AERBE TS UReREE MG A DI
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends
or otherwise, during the life of the company.
(o)  Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from a (b)) BAFEEEEIERRERELNGIEETEREE

substantial shareholder (note 27) arising from the loan from a substantial
shareholder. It is the difference between the imputed interest calculated
by the market interest rate at the loan inception date and the nominal
interest rate charged by the substantial shareholder.

& (FfREa7) o BTN ERERHE B IRMISFI R E
H) HE SRS 2 B AR R E A R 7 R A =
B e

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF

55



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETE
(Loss)/profit before tax Fian(E8), &5 (74,661) 10,030
Adjustments for: ARTTE
Interest income FMEMA (2 (234)
Finance costs BhE R AR 1,198 2,064
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BWMNREITE 372 548
Amortisation of contract costs B KK 2N B 6,024 237
Provision B 37,489 -
Impairment of goodwill EESNEAE 1,399 -
Loss/(gain) on debt modifications EREEEE (W) 1,434 (2,055)
Forfeiture of deposit paid RWE SRS 10,480 -
Impairment loss recognised under EHEEEBREATE
expected credit loss model ERAR(ERE 11,830 3,899
Operating cash flows before movements in BESEHINLERS
working capital Vi (4,437) 14,489
Decrease in inventories NP TRAN 955 =
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 REMBRFIEREE
rental deposits ZeIEm (3,068) (27,404)
Decrease in contract costs B KR AR - 429
Increase in trade, other payables and accruals B 5 - AR FRIERER
ERAEM 2,268 6,766
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD - 276
Increase in amount due to a director of JE 1<) B BGe 5 SRIE I AN
a subsidiary 3 =
Decrease in contract liabilities aHBaERD (849) (795)
Cash used in operations KEEFARS (5,128) (6,239)
Interest received WEA &, 2 =
Profits tax paid ERFIER - (1,655)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEHTARESFEHE (5,126) (7,894)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEReREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - IWEEE 4) =
Advance from a shareholder IR RIB AR K - (840)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 40) W b —FEI BT B8 2 | (B9 RE40) 1,735 =
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder of — B FT B A R IEIERR AR
a subsidiary RAEAI B 16 (33)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities REEZHHME(FTRA)BE:
HEE 1,747 (873)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
Interest paid BRFE (430) =
Borrowing raised S1REX 3,000 =
Repayment of other borrowings BEHAMER (200) -
Repayment of substantial shareholder loan EEXFZREER (11,500) (8,000)
Repayment of lease liability BEHEaE - (50)
Proceeds from issue of shares on placement, BT SRS HIE -
net of issue costs HBREBEITAA 14,153 7,776
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BETEFFARLSBE 5,023 (274)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RERBLEEYEM
equivalents (R ) 8 1,644 (9,041)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MAE1BNRERES
ZEWY 1,908 10,949
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R12A31EHEER
HEZEY 3,552 1,908
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRREAS 3,552 1,908
T FFR BEREEGER)ERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

58

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Its ultimate and immediate parent is Source
Creation International Limited, a company incorporated in
the Biritish Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned by
Mr. Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is an executive director
and the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
provision of exhibition and trade show and related services,
publication and advertising and outdoor advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (HK$), which is same as the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2023 as mentioned below. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”);
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and
prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

FE F#TR] & B B 35 3R &5 22 Rl ( I'E‘/%
PR 2R ) R HASET (&
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BREFERIFE12E BEIFGELN
pd HEN BEKAERH
IEAETR IR

BB EFTERE 125 BERRKE -
Z1E .:T$ T REB A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 3 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet

effective

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that are expected to be relevant to the Group and have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised
HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
Amendments to Classffication of Liabilties as 1 January 2024
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)'
Amendments to Non-current Liabilties with Covenants 1 January 2024
HKAS 1 (the 2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to Lease Liahilty in a Sale and 1 January 2024
HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Hong Kong Classffication by the Borrower of 1 January 2024
Interpretation a Term Loan that Contains
5 (Revised) aRepayment on Demand Clause
Presentation of (*HKInt & (Revised)’)
Financial Statements
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
HKAS 21
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined by
HKFRS 10and an Investor and ts Associate or the HKICPA
HKAS 28 Joint Venture!
L As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022

Amendments, Hong Kong Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will not have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z£2023F 12 A31H L F &

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$74,661,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023, and as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$31,962,000 and its total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by HK$29,684,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of the circumstances and conditions mentioned
above, the directors have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain measures have been taken by the Group
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position, which include, but not limited to, the following:

()  As detailed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is negotiating with its
contracting party (the “Prime Contractor”) for a
favorable term in settling the Group’s obligations
of approximately HK$37,489,000 arising from the
early termination of a subcontracting agreement
(“Subcontracting Agreement”);

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

EXRSTBERE)

fim BB ()

BT AT EUNBHREERNGE MR
RABRETRARBR R - EFNE
AT BORE INATTEH A - P KR Eage
#1 i  E0 E A SR AR e (i st Y A S I 5 R
KM= BEANBENGS A HHRKME
AREE

MAZSEAVMBRREERANERNER
BEREN TX -

HZE2023F12A31BILFEE - K&EE
BE AR E B 474,661,000/ 7T © MR %
HEASBZ i aEHBLERDEE
31,962,000/ ' REGERTEBHEE
EE#8{E29,684,00078 7T °

LIERKAFEREHARERELE
BENBAEASRNEATEERE -

ERERBERER  EEQEHFHAER
AEBRRBBDES NEE  ARBEK
RAHEREBE S TR M B ERARE
R - NEEE RIS TR EARER
BB RBEBEMBRR  BEED
BRI -

() FHUERE RS RER M FE26PTREL - AN
SBEFRESGOF(E2EE))ES
NERB TR - BEAEBRERESR
LIt BRE( D ER®E]) MELL
37,489,000/8 ST E T :



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)  The Group is negotiating with its lenders in seeking
for the extension of repayments of its borrowings,
including principals and interests; and

(i)  The Group is actively negotiating with external parties
to obtain new sources of funding to finance the
Group’s working capital and improve the liquidity
position.

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group for a period covered not less than
twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements. Based on the cash flow forecast which
has assumed the successful implementation of the above
measures, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next
twelve months from the date of approval for the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether management of the Company will be able
to achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to generate
adequate financing and operating cash flows through the
successful outcome of these measures.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
restate the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively, and to
provide for any further liabilities that may arise. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUS).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses whether
these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of
other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises an asset
for these costs only if they meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources. The Group’s
revenue recognition policies on each of these revenue
sources are as follows:

(i) Publications and advertising income

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released
on the designated publications and online media
platform. Revenue from publications and advertising
recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

The Group generates advertising design and related
production services to its customers. Revenue from
provision of advertising design and related production
service is recognised over a period of time using the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the
customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under contract (i.e.
when the designated publications transferred to the
customers).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Outdoor advertising income

The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue
from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.

The Group provides advertisement sourcing agency
services to its customers. Revenue from provision of
advertisement sourcing agency service is recognised
over a period of time under a straight-line method
and amortised over the period of the contract. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission on a net basis as an agent.

Exhibitions and trade show and related service
income

Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show
services is recognised over time using the output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(iv) Sales of luxury products

Revenue from sales of luxury products is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered and the customers
have inspected and accepted the products. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customers purchase the goods and takes delivery in
store. A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the buyer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

(v) Online sales of beauty and cosmetics products

Revenue from the online sales of beauty and
cosmetics products is recognised at a point in time
when a product is delivered to the customer and the
Group receives sales and acceptance confirmations,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that affects the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the goods. Under the Group’s
standard contract terms, customers have a right of
return within 30 days. At the point of sale, a refund
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue
is recognised for those products expected to be
returned. At the same time, the Group has a right to
recover the product when customers exercise their
right of return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EREFBEERG@#)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE(#E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEFERAFEN (&)

Right-of-use assets AL E

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value REHHEMKEEEEREI)  ~EE

assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at REERBBE(AIEEEERHERE

the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the A)EREREEE - FRBEERKAR

underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are FRE2FFERREEETE - WRHEE

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and BEENTERELHE -

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEERNNAEIE

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease o THEABMVIRFTTESSE:
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the o AR HEHSZ BIEL A EMRBER
commencement date, less any lease incentives FoOBEFRBREEES
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and o  AEBEAMNTMAVBEEREKRAE K

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group o ZAEERFMEREBEBEE  BER
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets, HEEEMTE SN EREBEESR
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the TR E RV IETR RGP AR TE BRI B
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms AR AEET ©

and conditions of the lease.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE
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the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modlifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EREHBEE)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Foreign currencies ShiE

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is

a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.

EXRSTBER@E)

BEEN (&)
RTESHIBRE

1R B R IR EDUBS B R A L2 8
B BRI 9 FU AR T AR E
#e0 AR -

R B B E RS R RO R
FE(TE LA FEM ISR B G DRI
AEEHBREEBRATANMGRT  ©
BB EARRI - W (BAERA
)T AR - RE|EHR - A%
B 2R ZPTA RS 5 5 B IR R T
(EFTERBBRATANMGEEE - &a]
REMBFTOZE(WA) HNER AR -
< R RREERTH A5 - LARRER
BERAEERDARER - R B
BSERERENS - RHBRED
NSRS SE gl R

IRTTIE RE ARAERS - ST AT IO RE AR M F AR
M SRR ERERA LB EE - BB
N ERE B R R i B R
1TEEH - STRTI B (S R R S 8
BREZEEE -

R B HEE R E

B g BIRINY A THETTRIIRA B B A0 1+
AR HREWEREmARBEN A FE
A8 ERFEBEERRSFMEFRRIN - Rt
BT - AZERLRATANRFER
ITROFEMIXHEN XN < BEt
£ - EWEREmEARBH A FEIIHERS
s o

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF

85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

86

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to application
of the initial recognition exemption.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Advertising billboard 7 years
Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract cost to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, contract costs and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying assessment. Any specific borrowing that remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9, and

- the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without the
guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable
to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part
of the cost of the investment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

U)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the FVTOCI
reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the other gain and losses line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on financial assets and contract assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables without
significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

U

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

U

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the past-due status basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognised its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognised the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to a director of a subsidiary, loan from
a substantial shareholder and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms after considering
qualitative factors (e.g. modifications of convertible
instruments such as extending the tenure, change in
exercise price of the underlying options). When the
contractual terms of financial liability are modified such that
the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors, such
madification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liability derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise the
difference between the revised carrying amount and the
expected cash flows over the life of the modified instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

EXETHE @)

BERREE

R AR A K BN s B RAIR A BN
BERENRESHERFTEBRAESF IR
BRINER & B 5 R R AR TR FHES
FORERERNEHNBELRE - Qg
AP RAMETRE ©

BEAH R ARG

RE 3Tl E A A KB &5 BRE - &
FARA IR HEMER RRE 5 EEZ
BENMBEREEELHE - G5 AR
R o RF A RAERRIDENBELR
A RARE AR < HM A - BRGERK
SAERINZEFEET

ARFIEFHERFTZFEFT MAABRE
PG RHERTAERT R B ERT BT A
> AIEBER] e E%ME®ER - kiHE
FRERT R B RV BRI - RIBRRERT
SIS RT IR MR K R RERR o



4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

(Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

0]

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit, a suitable
discount rate, terminal rate and growth rates in
order to calculate the present value. Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 17.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$905,000
(2022: HK$1,399,000) after an impairment loss
of HK$1,399,000 (2022: HK$NIl) was recognised
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

(Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

Provision of ECL for trade and other
receivables and other deposits

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for trade receivables and other deposits. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as
groupings of various debtors with common credit
risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable, and that is available
without undue cost or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables that are credit impaired are assessed
for ECL individually.

In respect of other receivables, the Group
assesses the expected credit losses individually
by estimation based on historical credit loss
experience, general economic conditions of the
relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The information about the Group’s trade and
other receivables and credit risk and impairment
assessment are disclosed in notes 20 and
34 respectively. As at 31 December 2023,
the carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and other deposits,
was approximately HK$32,289,000 (2022;
HK$40,702,000), net of allowance for credit loss
of HK$15,770,000 (2022: HK$3,940,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

(Continued)

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii) Provision for contract obligation

When accounting for provision for claims on
contracts, the Group has taken internal and
external advice in considering known claims
and actions made by or against the Group. It
carefully assesses the likelihood of success
of a claim or actions. Provisions are made for
certain contracts, claims or actions against
the Group. Provision on possible obligations, if
appropriate, are made based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. The information
about the provision is disclosed in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amount of provision
was approximately HK$37,489,000 (2022: Nil).

(b) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with above).

(i) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which depends upon the ongoing
availability of finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Details are explained
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

B R T & B L5 ()

(a)

AT REENEERRR ()

(iii) BARIETEE

EZEEHNRERER &~
B EHREMAIBMINIBER - &
REMAEEFRS G EHEE
KEWITE - FHEFEITE
FRINEI AT RE M - BB = B it
AEENELEL - REFXF
Ao AR A e BEEREME - 0
HE - B*E%FMIEE’JEE—%E
ETFNHIET - BRABEE R RER
B BEBRERNF26HE - B
2023F12A31H » BEZEM
& 49 /37,489,000 7 7T ( 2022
F:Tg) e

(b) MEREFBERNEAHE

ERAEHTHRRNBET - EFFL
ATHGAVBREAERSBRE
REE A (BR 8 M fh T A B2 32 40
E)e

() FHEEELEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 3, ECL are measured as
an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage
1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward looking information.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
as a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or services before that good or services is
transferred to a customer.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

REVENUE 5. W&
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REFEFEHNKEMAD
customers
2023 2022
20235 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHIT
Sales of luxury products HEE %M 3,120 =
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics B EHEEA R
products 11,321 -
Provision of exhibition and trade show — RHtEREIZHRERE KHH
and related services PR 7% - 1,107
Publications and advertising income T REERA 8,592 18,780
Outdoor advertising income FONEEWA 517 14,758
23,550 34,645
Timing of revenue recognition Wi 225 7 0 B
A point in time e R 14,441 272
Overtime I8 P P 9,109 34,373
23,550 34,645
Transaction allocated to the remaining performance PTHMEEFEHNZHRTEANEEIZRS
obligation for contract with customer
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEEE BB BV BRELENE15RKE
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the 11BN ERERE R ZEREFMBHES
Group does not disclose information about revenue that A MAKRES I RBEERETREITHRTE
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining ABEREE RG2S ER -

performance obligations.

SEoceeR EREEGER)ERAR
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(1) Exhibition and trade show business and related
services

(2) Publications and advertising business, including print
and online media advertising, sales of publications,
advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising

(8) Online sales of beauty and cosmetics products
(commenced in 2023)

(4)  Sales of luxury products (commenced in 2023)

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below.

6. REDIUE)

B 220234 Kk2022F 12 A RE T ALK
EEREERRELRD HBERFEZAR

SERTREINT ©

Segment revenues and results oIS R AR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12HA31ALLFEE
Exhibition
Online sales Publications and trade
of beauty and Sales of and show business
cosmetics luxury advertising and related
products products business services Total
RERES
BLeExs Hik REEK
Rt HEEBM REER REERE &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FhEr Fhn FEL TR TR
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers R BSMIBE P ALE 11,321 3,120 9,109 - 23,550
Segment profi AEbER 1,082 120 5173 - 6,375
Other income Htle A 154
Other (losses) or gains, net At (B8 dkE 58 (56,802)
Operating expenses LERY (11,360)
Impairment loss recognised under the  TBEIEEBRERT
expected credit loss model Bl RERE (11,830)
Finance costs BENK (1,198)
Loss before tax BiRIER (74,661)
Income tax FrieHt -
Loss for the year EREE (74,661)

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

6. REDIUE)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) o E R R 34 (M)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31HIEFE
Exhibition
Online sales Publications and trade
of beauty and Sales of and  show business
cosmetics luxury advertising and related
products products business services Total
RERES
BLHEXA 9k EEXH
Rt HEBGM BEEHE RAA#RS ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TAL TAL TAL THL
Revenue Iy
Revenue from external customers RSN PRz - - 33,538 1,107 34,645
Segment profit DEbER - - 23,989 123 24,112
Other income LN 2,206
Other gains or (losses), net Ewlas(B8)58 2,055
Operating expenses TERY (12,380)
Impairment loss recognised under the  BBEEEBEER T
expected credit loss model EEEMRESS (3,899)
Finance costs BEKA (2,064)
Profit before tax BB ATRR 10,080
Income tax FiEH -
Profit for the year EREA 10,030

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s material accounting policy
information described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit represents the profit earned
from each segment without allocation of other income,
operating expenses, other (losses) or gains, net, impairment
loss recognised under expected credit loss model and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of unallocated bank
balances and cash and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include provisions and trade and other payables

attributable to the activities of the individual segments,

contract liabilities and lease liabilities.

@ A A

VAT 23R °] 2 0 M &

DEHEEREMBAN LENEENANR
BEE  TERANRRITEBRNIREIA
REMEEEE - DHRERREEADE
MRS ARELRHERE -

BB D AR E

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and =7
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. BENKBENDIT
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Segment assets PEEE
Exhibition and trade show business and EBENEZREEEE K
related services IR RS 119 2,068
Publications and advertising business T4 % & 25 575 25,503 53,061
Sales of luxury products HEE %M 3,752 =
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics B EHEERA Rt
products 2,354 -
Total segment assets DEEEMETR 31,728 55,129
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRIRS 335 213
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 8,962 8,518
Consolidated assets REEE 41,025 63,860
Segment liabilities il =R
Exhibition and trade show businessand EERZEZFREEEKL
related services 1B RS 369 368
Publications and advertising business T & & s 27 49,436 10,403
Sales of luxury products HEZZM 1,947 -
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics A EHEEA MMk
products 4,515 -
Total segment liabilities DEPREREE 56,267 10,771
Unallocated liabilities AOBEEE 14,442 21,363
Consolidated liabilities mERE 70,709 32,134
T FFR BEREEGER)ERAT
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue for operations is from
external customers presented based on location of delivery
destination of the goods and place of services rendered.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

AEEEBUREBERALE -

EWAEER S NGB RS LB AR
ToARE S M RAT B S SR AR b

ZEL

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REIMDEF RS FREBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET THERT FAET
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau 2788 X /& &
Greater Bay Area 34,645 2,278 13,619

Revenue from major customers

Revenue from customers who have individually contributing

REFEFF WS

RIERFEEASBHER LIGRRER

over 10% of total sales of the corresponding years of the 10%MEFPUE=IAT -
Group is as follows:

2023 2022
20234F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Customer A (Note (a))' EFEA(KI7E(0)) N/A ~E A 6,409
Customer B (Note (a))" EFEB(ME@)" N/A ~E A 5,796
Customer C (Note (b)) EFC(FizE(p))? 2,740 N/A T iE A
Customer D (Note (a))? EFD(FtsE())? 1,213 N/A 7~iE A

U The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the current year.

2 The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the last year.

(@) Revenue from the above customers is arising from publications
and advertising business.

(b) Revenue from the above customer is arising from sales of luxury
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

OTHER INCOME Hitglr A
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Bank interest income HRITHEHA 2 -

Interest income on non-current deposits ~ FERENE & B F EUA

(note 20) - 234
Government grants (Note) BT B (BT ) - 1,466
Sundry income 100 506
Exchange difference, net ME N R H R 52 -
154 2,206

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did
not recognise any government grants (2022: HK$208,000
and HK$1,258,000) related to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong SAR Government and incentive
subsidy for technology modernisation by the Government
Information Bureaus of the Macau SAR respectively. Government
grants were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant

granting criteria.

OTHER (LOSSES) OR GAINS, NET

MiaE - B E2023F 12 A31AILFE @ AEEWE
REMEESERBITIRHAREETE
A BE 80 B B (20224 : 208,000 7T &
1,258,000/t ) ° BPIRF R BUT T E B3tk
R AL IR A BB RS - BUSHBIRAE

ER R AR R IR R R o

Ht (B8) NS5

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREBE(HF17 - 19)

(notes 17, 19) (1,399) -
(Loss)/gain on debt modification EREE (F8),Wa (M5E27)

(note 27) (1,434) 2,055
Forfeiture of deposit paid (note (a)) SR e (M) (10,480) =
Contract cost written off (note (b)) WEEE LKA (M5 (o) (6,000) =
Provision (note (c)) B (FI3E() (37,489) =

(56,802) 2,055

—Eo=rr ENEEGRR)ERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

8. OTHER (LOSSES) OR GAINS, NET (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Comprised of the carrying value of security deposit and
capitalised contract costs amounting to HK$9,889,000 and
HK$591,000, being forfeited and written off as the result of early
termination for right of usage of advertising spaces. Further
details were described in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

H e (B8 ) 2 K a5 75 38 ()

Bifez

BRERSRIEESVEFEAEMEZK
EMENRESRRERENEE LKA
9,889,000/ 7T }&2591,000/8 7T » B R —
FIBHN RS PISIRER M 20 K21 -

(o)  The account represented prepayment of rental costs of (o) FHERIEEZENESCESERANBENR
advertising spaces written off, details were described in note 21 18 - FHRERN SR A M IS AMEE21 -
to these consolidated financial statements.

(c)  Provision represents present legal obligations that the Group ) RBEAFASERRFERILSBHENLEED
would owe to the Prime Contractor due to early termination of BREAERBRITEARRG - E—PFHFIRN
subcontracting agreement. Further details were described in note 2B A SRR M 5126 ©
26 to these consolidated financial statements.

9. FINANCE COSTS & KA
2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT T
Interest on other borrowing (note 28) HABE R F S (P 5E28) 430 -
Interest on loan from a substantial FERRERFE
shareholder (note 27) (fizE27) 768 2,064
1,198 2,064

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

11.

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

10. BRBiAI(EE), 8T

BriAT (B518), s M Th IR T 51 B B

54

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&T

Auditors’ remuneration — audit services  AZEHFIBN & — TAXRE 880 800
Impairment loss recognised on trade ME 5 K EH M W R RERR Y

and other receivables, net BEE R FRE (F17E34)

(note 34) 11,830 3,899
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) EEREEE(ME17) 1,399 =
Depreciation of property, plant and M - B/ REREITE (5@ &

equipment (note (a) and note 16) BizE16) 372 548
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 13,239 -
Rental expenses in respect of RHAEMNHEERX

short-term leases 1,153 942
Staff costs B ITHA

Director’s emoluments (note 12) 5 (MizE12) 1,055 1,130
Other staff costs HMh8 TR

— salaries, allowances and benefits —¥%  EMEREDMET

in kind 6,023 5,883

— contributions to retirement benefits —RIRBFIET IR

scheme 80 158
6,103 6,041

Note (a): Depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2023 included
approximately HK$239,000 (2022: HK$239,000) in cost of
sales.

INCOME TAX

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the Group has
incurred tax losses for both years of assessment.

11.

MizE@) : B 22023 F 12 AT AL FEMINER
15 8 & B 7K 49 239,000 7 TT (2022 4 :
239,000/ 7T) °

Frig s

BEFNSHEMART  GEKEEREEY
2,000,000 & 7T #) @ A 7% X & 8.25% -

1 8 #8 2,000,000 78 7T A% 7 & K Bl &
16.5% ° TRIEFGEH MBI NERE T8
B35 I 5 4 4B 1216.5% B B — i R 40T -

H 22023F K2022%F12 A31HIEFE X
BRERBNER  AAEBEHBRRWT
HFERERTE BT -

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. Fr8%H (&)
Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the RPPS R 7 1 T3t M B F 2 B (5T B AR
estimated assessable profits for both years. TR AN12%stE -
The income tax for the years can be reconciled to the (loss)/ FASEHEGEBEEMNEME2mKER
profit before tax per consolidated statement of profit or loss F5IBR B AT (E518), a2 EERIA T -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFiA(E518) = A (74,661) 10,030
Tax (credit)/charge at the Hong Kong REEFEHE16.5%
Profits Tax rate at 16.5% (20224F : 16.5%)&TEHJ
(2022: 16.5%) FIE(ER) T (12,319) 1,655
Tax effect of income not taxable and FETEHIE 2 BARTUA K
expenses not deductible for tax TAMBAXRBTE 2
purpose, net R 12,405 360
Tax effect of temporary difference not KRR EZEHIETE
recognised 42 53
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FE fth Bl ARE R & E A B A7)
operating in other jurisdiction W TAEBEEE (355) (78)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A LRI AREREIEEE
recognised - (2,071)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RERBFHIBBEENT S E
recognised 227 81
Income tax Frig it - =
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RBERKR AEBHEEFEAADA
unused tax losses of approximately HK$15,617,000 (2022: I8 &5 18 49 15,617,000 78 7T (2022 4F -
HK$7,524,000) available for offset against future profits. No 7,524,000/ 7T ) © 7% 7X7E A] K 8 R K
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax T o R ARIH T EATER - R I &=
loss due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The B IEEERRELEHIBEE - RERN
unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. THES1E Al R Bi4EES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of directors and the chief executive for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

12. EEME

BLE2023F 202212 A31 B IEFER)

EENTETRAEBMEWT :

Year ended 31 December 2023
BZ2023F12ANALLEE
Contributions Equity-settled

Salaries to retirement  share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
Fek BINER RELEE
ik HtbiER ®e TEME  ROATEX &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TER TER THER TER
Executive director/ YITESE /B
independent non- FHTES
executive director
Hung Yuen Kin fRiER - 708 - - - 708
Wong Yuk® e - 114 - - - 114
Lui Man Wah® AED - - - - - -
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling Bk 75 - - - - 75
Wong Ling Yan Philip¢ ~ =ERA® 8 - - - - 8
Lee Man Yeung® FFO 90 - - - - 20
Lin Zexin® HESE 60 - - - - 60
Total emoluments EMe 233 822 - - - 1,055

Notes:

(@) appointed on 31 May 2023.

(b) re-designated from independent non-executive director on 4

April 2023.

(c) resigned on 12 April 2023.

((6)] resigned on 12 March 2024.

(e) appointed on 12 March 2023.

(@)  H2023%5H31 ST -

(b) H2023F4 A48 BB IENITESRAE -

(©  H2023F4A12BEHT -
(@)  HA2024F3A12BBHT -

6) 202353 12AKE(E -

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries

and other

Fees benefits
T

ik At EH
HK$'000 HK$'000

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

2. EEM= )

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12A31HI5E

Contributions  Equity-settled

toretirement  share-based
benefit payment

Bonus scheme expense Total
SRR RiEsE

Re SRR RONREX CH)

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THEL TiEx THT TAL THEx TEL
Executive director HTEE
Hung Yuen Kin FRiEfR - 710 - - - 710
Non-executive director ~ F#HTES
Lui Man Wah AXE 150 - - - - 150
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors

Wong Chi Ling 5% 90 - - - - 90
Wong Ling Yan Philip 5ER 90 - - - - 90
Lee Man Yeung E3¢:3 90 - - - - 90
Total emoluments EMe 420 710 - - - 1,130

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

There were no share options granted during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for a loan from Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as detailed in note 27 to
these consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no amount
(2022: Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note
18 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. Except for Mr. Lui, who
waived his emolument for the year ended 31 December
2023, there was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the both
years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included one (2022: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

12. EEME(E)

HE2023F12A31BILEE  BERAK
EEMESFHIWFIEAERSFALT
B Ef]— 5 A S BT IR (202246 @ #&)
EBWS| INAKREB S INARER & F 1
Ehek BB (E - BRE LN - BHREERE
2023F 12 A1 B IEFERB< - KMEF
B BEEENEXRAEREZETAHEH
ZHE

13. IEREHEES

FRARERE R FEETRE—RE
£(2022F : —REE)  EHFMHFBER
RA B HRERM 12 HEE - FAK T
H#(2022F : UB) mxmFEE (BLIEAR
BESZMIIEETZITHRAE) NFHEFB W
B

2023 2022

2023%F 20224F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#E T FH&T

Salaries and other benefits e hEAEF 3,787 2,236
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKEFETEI AR

scheme 43 45

3,830 2,281

The number of highest paid employee who are not directors
whose remuneration fell within the following bands:

e FATHEMLIFESHNZ=HE
BAR:

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH T FH&TT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 71,000,000/ 7T 4 4

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

14.

15.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BR(ER) BF
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share AKRaEBEABLERERARE S (F
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the 1),/ BRI TIREIA T8EE

following data:

2023 2022
2023F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Loss)/earnings for the year attributable AR EIHA AEIGER(ER),
to owners of the Company el (73,721) 10,104
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary FALAST E G AR E R K 58 B R &Y
shares for the purposes of basic and TR NkE I 8
diluted earnings per share 595,946,959 503,960,548
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, dilutive HE2023F K2022F 12 A31 B ILFE -
earnings per share has not been presented as there is no AN BTN B EEAR D -
potential dilutive shares outstanding. E27GREERT -
DIVIDENDS 15. K2
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final EETEZRNEZE2023F12A31HIEF
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). SRR AREAR B (20224 © &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % - SBWNRE

Furniture
Advertising Leasehold Office Motor and
billboard  improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
REM BEXE  BOZRE AE GRREE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TR TR TiEn TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2022 and R02E1A1BR
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 1,675 314 812 480 1,221 4508
Acquired on acquisiton ofa ~ EE—THBAR
subsidiary K - - 1 - - 1
Adoltions during the year ~ EARE - - 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2023 2023%12731H 1,675 314 817 480 1,221 4513
Accumulated depreciation Z:#7E
At 1 January 2022 Ro020%1A18 179 240 789 480 862 2,550
Charge for the year ERxit 239 64 23 - 222 548
At 31 December 2022and 120226124318 R
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 418 304 812 480 1,084 3,098
Charge for the year ERT 239 10 1 - 122 372
At 31 December 2023 120235125310 657 314 813 480 1,206 3470
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2023 12023512531H 1,018 - 4 - 21 1,043
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12A431H 1,257 10 - - 143 1,410
“EC—FF EREEGZER)ERAF



130

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

17.

18.

GOODWILL 17. &
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T AT
Cost AR
At 1 January ®m1A1H 1,399 1,399
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary L B8 — BB B D B AT EE A

(note 40) (FfF3E40) 905 -
At 31 December »12A318 2,304 1,399
Accumulated impairment losses ZIUREERE
At 1 January M1A1H - —
Impairment loss recognised in REEHRRBERE

the current year 1,399 -
At 31 December R12H31H 1,399 -
Carrying amount AREIE
At 31 December ®12A31H 905 1,399
Particulars regarding impairment testing of goodwill BEAREREINRNEENRNZESEEUTE
are disclosed in note 19 to these consolidated financial WRMFE19%FE -
statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Club
membership
BenesE
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 7202241 A18 ~ 20224128318 »

1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2023%1 A1H &2023F12H31H 330
The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried BT e A FERER - LRI
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The ZEREBEYR - REBSEATES
fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying RERMEE °
amount.
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

19.

BB RER

AT & ot TR M B W B B 5 o =
BEHSREERF AR X am R e EL BN
(REELEM]) - BEIEAOT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost: B
Online sales of beauty and cosmetics HLEHEEA RIS
products:
Yantic Limited (“Yantic”) fRIEFR AT ([fRIEE]) 905 =
Exhibition and trade show business RELEFRE RIEERS
and related services:
To Be Concept Limited (“TBC”) BLEREIBRAR(BEER
21 1,399 1,399
2,304 1,399
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BEDREEE (1,399) =
905 1,399
In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment and BREEIN - W BERME FRESE

other intangible assets that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill are also included in the respective
CGU for the purpose of impairment assessment.

Exhibition and trade show business and related
services CGU

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors
of the Group have determined that there is impairment
of goodwill directly related to Exhibition and trade
show business and related services CGU amounting to
HK$1,399,000 (2022: Nil). The impairment loss has been
recorded in other (losses) or gains, net in note 8 to these
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of goodwill under this CGU was resulted
by major changes in market conditions and the uncertainty
of profitability of the business of Exhibition and trade show
business and related services, the directors of the Company
suspended the business of Exhibition and trade show
business and related services, and as resulted the goodwill
of Exhibition and trade show business and related services
was fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

“TO=FFR EREEGER

FERAEEELRSRENAMEYE
Eju‘l’)\*ﬁ)gia@%i BALREITRIERT

RENEFREXEREBRBERSE
£E

@immﬁmﬂmatir REFEES

ErhAReEASNEEABNEE
m@uﬂmm%m@w%ﬁﬂﬂ BB
ERBE R AR EH ESH E b (Fi8) sl ik
TFFBROER o

IR & B A B MR BIRE ) B R T35
MHABRECURRENESHREEK
NMIERERBHBNENFETEERE
ARRERERERENEHREXGNE
AR RS - Fuitt - B E2023F12H31H
HEE - REREHREX LERRSG
MR B EBHRME(20224F : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

19.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
(Continued)

Online sales of beauty and cosmetic products CGU

The directors of the Group determined that there is no
impairment loss related to goodwill attributable to online
sales of beauty and cosmetic products CGU.

The recoverable amounts of this CGU have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash
flow method, which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.2% per annum
calculated by using weighted average cost of capital. Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2.5% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecast and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for relevant industry. The key
assumptions used by management in setting the financial
budgets for the initial five-year period were as follows:

Forecast sales growth rates — based on past experience
adjusted for 16%.

Operating profits — based on historical experience of
operating margins, adjusted for the impact of 18.5%.

Cash conversion — based on the historical ratio of operating
cash flow to operating profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER DEPOSITS

20. ESREMBRREREttRE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Trade receivables B S EWGIR 41,206 37,937
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (15,770) (3,940)
25,436 33,997
Deposits b 39 9,918
Rental deposits Hekse 58 58
Prepayment B FAE 20 109
Other receivables HAb EUFRIR 6,756 6,618
32,309 50,700
Less: deposits paid for securing B BESRRIERSBEEET
advertising space shown under BEAENBMiRe
non-current assets (Note) (B &E) - (9,889
Shown under current assets TIRRRENEEET 32,309 40,811

“TRO=FFR EREEZER)ARATF
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered

into a subcontracting agreement with the Prime Contractor who
is an independent third party to the Group, whereby certain
advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing
Facilities are subcontracted to the Group. Further details in
relation to the Subcontracting Agreement are set out in the
Management and Discussion Analysis to the 2020 annual
report. The Group was required to pay a security deposit of
HK$10,500,000 (MOP10,815,000) (“Security Deposit”) to secure
the advertising spaces from 1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025.
The effective interest rate of the non-current deposits is 2.4% per
annum.

The Group classifies the Security Deposit as a financial asset
at amortised cost and assessed the fair value of the Security
Deposit as at settlement date discounted by the prevailing
market interest rate. The difference between the fair value of the
Security Deposit as at settlement date and the transaction price
of HK$10,500,000 (MOP10,815,000) is recorded as a contract
cost, as disclosed in note 21 to these consolidated financial
statements. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not record interest income on the Security Deposit
amortised under the effective interest rate due to the early
termination of the Subcontracting Agreement for the abolition of
the right of using advertising spaces (2022: HK$234,000) with
effect from 30 April 2023 (the “Termination”).

According to the terms of the Subcontracting Agreement, the
Security Deposit amounting to HK$9,889,000 as at 30 April
20283 paid to the Prime Contractor for securing advertising
spaces will be forfeited by the Prime Contractor. As a result, it
will be recorded as a forfeiture of the deposit paid and reflected
under other (losses) or gains, net in note 8 to these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

20. EFREMBRRERAEMRS (M)

M5E : REZE2020F 12 A31 B IEFE @ ANEE

AEEBLE=FNEDBERI LD B
BUERBEBORNETESMNES B TAE
E - RS BRI E — FEEH 2020
FERMBEE TR RN - AEBELZ
10,500,000/ 7t.(10,815,000/8 P ¥ ) (R 75 &
([R#E 1) LAER{52020%F1 A1 H Z=202545
AS1BMESNE - JERNER S M ERFIE
BEFFE2.4% °

REEBRES D ERIZBENATENS
BMEE  WHRESHEERIRRTMS
MERBEHATE RESHREEAHA
F{H 32 5 {E 10,500,000 7t (10,815,000
SRPITT) 2 R Z R ARSI ES LIRS « 7
BRALRE M RERME21ETE - RBZE
202312 A31HIEFE + AN B2023F4
A0BAERMERESNEFERAENS R
BEERAKRIE(RIE]D - AEBWEES
RERFIREHNRE S ZFBWA (2022
& : 234,00087T) °

RIE S B 175 185K+ 9,889,000/ ST AR &
& R2023F4 A0 XN D BEAREE
EHE - BHESBESW - Bt - EiSt
REBRRENETE - WRBRAERE B
SRR MIES A (B518) Sl F 58 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group provided customers with credit period ranging
from O to 90 days from the date on which invoice was issued.
The credit terms of each customer of the Group were
determined by the Group’s sales team and were subject to
review and approval of the Group’s management based on
the customers’ payment history, transaction volume and
length of business relationship with the Group.

All outstanding trade receivables balances were being
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken.
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the
collections and the Group’s accounting department would
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (before
allowance for credit losses) at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice days:

20.

B 5 R EMBWRIER RS (8

AEBEATFREARMOERAHERO
EQHMEEY - AEEERXFPHNEER
HBAKENHEBKET - WARAE
BEEBREEPOMNRCE RFPER
HEAEERGAENT REHRAER -
JTRIER -

FIEREEE RN BEGERNEEH
& 20T HAZE R « LARR(R b (1 {a) 360 B P U 3R
BT MEFEER RIREUEE W ITE) - A
EEHEEBFREWRBR  MAEES
ETEREERINTEE - MRSEARA
BEERMNS @ AEBREREVEETE
BUIER - RE E20234 & 2022F 12 A
S1HIFE ' AEEREREUEAERIT
BB URIETS ©

R EB2IME S EIGIRE(FREER
BRBEFEINBREMNRORESNET

2023 2022

20234 20224F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

1-30 days 1230H 3,419 11,375
31-90 days 31£90H 739 3,790
91-365 days 91%365H 11,882 14,579
Over 365 days HiEH365H 25,166 8,193
41,206 37,937

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 are set out in note 34.

H E2023F 2022F 12 A31 B IEFEHY
B 5 N B A E UK R R B RS SIS SR B
34 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

21. CONTRACT COSTS 21. EHHE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F&T
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to: BITBBATEERNE K IR
Publications and advertising business  FI|¥) & &4 %75 6,664 6,688
Less: Contract cost for early termination J& : F2 R4 1 ERAYA L9
of licence (notes (i) and (ii)) (B R Gi) B (i) ) (591) =
Less: Cost for right of use of billboard & : &5 k{5 AR AN (B 7E() K2
(notes (i) and (ii)) B REGi) (6,000) =
73 6,688
Contract costs for securing advertising  BREEYIRRIEREEEE NE
space shown under non-current HREHE LKA (B EE())
assets (note (i) - (591)
Shown under current assets HITRRmBIEEIE T 73 6,097

Notes:

(i) The amount represented contract costs capitalised for
publications and advertising business and related services,
being the cost to fulfill contracts of design and production of
advertisement resulted in customers entering contracts for the
Group’s design and production which are still under process at
the end of the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2022, contract costs capitalised for
publications and advertising business related to the time value
of money arising from the Security Deposit to secure advertising
space of approximately HK$591,000 as disclosed in note 21
to these consolidated financial statements, and costs to fulfill
contracts for advertising business arising from prepayments
for short term rental of advertising spaces of approximately
HK$6,097,000. There was no impairment on the contract cost
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

(ii) Owing to the Termination as mentioned in note 20 to these
consolidated financial statements, the carrying amount of
capitalised contract costs and prepayments for short term
rental of advertising spaces of approximately HK$591,000 and
HK$6,000,000 respectively were written off as contract cost
written off and recorded in other (losses) or gains, net in note 8
to these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

22, BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22, SRITHEBRRE
Bank balances IRITHER
Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits RITHERBEREARR=E A AR
with a maturity period of three months period or less, FE KRBT S MR B EBRT
bearing prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December 73 - R2023%F 12 A31H » FRENTF
2023, the interest rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.26% (2022: 0.01%%0.26% (20224 : FH|F0.01%E
0.01% to 0.1%) per annum. 0.1%) °
23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Finished goods and merchandises B o R 1,404 -
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, EZREMENRIE
2023 2022
20234 2022%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Trade payables B FER IR 10,815 9,085
Other payables H {th FE IR 9,841 7,264
Accrued expenses (Note) FEETE A (FisE) 3,894 2,822
24,550 19,121
Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued Mizk . EErEREZeEET8 TN RET
professional fee. HEER -
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within TEHEIMEE SN ZRIBEBRN —FRNEEK
one year or are repayable on demand. WEREE -
During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers HEFIREFARTHNEER KN T0E
are generally ranging from 0 to 60 days (2022: O to 60 days). 60H (20224 : 0£60H) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24, EFRHEMENREGE)
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the UWTARZEZEZEHHENE ZENZKIER
end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice WS R A BRER DA
dates:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0-60 days 0£60H 846 401
61-90 days 61290H 149 146
Over 90 days B0 H 9,820 8,488
10,815 9,035
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Receipt in advance for advertisement  FBU E & RS2 IE
service 8 856
Movements in contract liabilities EHAEEH
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at 1 January ®1 A1 Br &R 856 1,651
Decrease in contract liabilities as a A ENERWAGT ARG K
result of recognising revenue during BEBHEHNEERD
the year was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the period (856) (1,651)
Increase in contract liabilities as a EFAREFPEIRRESREH
result of consideration received from B &M
customers during the year 8 856
Balance at 31 December R12 A31 Bk 8 856
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance ErEEEEERENESREEARE
of exhibition and trade show project and advertisement HEAENRKNIES  BERENEERE
contracts, it results in contract liabilities at the beginning of ARBRELEEERREER

the contract until revenue is recognised.
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

PROVISION

As set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group entered into the Subcontracting Agreement with the
Prime Contractor. Under this agreement, certain advertising
spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities were
subcontracted to Tiance Cultural Communication Limited
(“Tiance Cultural”), a subsidiary of the Group. The Prime
Contractor subcontracted the right to use the advertisement
spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai, specifically Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge Macau Section Passenger
Clearance Building to Tiance Cultural for a term of 65
months from 1 January 2020 to 31 May 2025. The monthly
subcontracting fee of HK$1,500,000 (“Monthly Service
Fee”) was paid to the Prime Contractor for conducting its
publication and advertising business.

Effective from 30 April 2023, Tiance Cultural and the
Prime Contractor agreed to terminate the Subcontracting
Agreement. According to the Subcontracting Agreement,
the Prime Contractor has the right to receive from Tiance
Cultural, and Tiance Cultural is obliged to pay the Prime
Contractor the Monthly Service Fee for the remaining term of
the Subcontracting Agreement that Tiance Cultural did not
fulfill. The provision was made based on the Monthly Service
Fee and remaining term of the Subcontracting Agreement
that Tiance Cultural is required to fulfill.

LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

The balance represents loans from Mr. Lui, the substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to a series of
extension agreements between the Company and Mr. Lui
from 2020 to 2023, the repayment dates of the loans were
extended.

26.

27.

B

WA ARER G ISR R M E20FTE - HE
2020F 12 AG1HIEFE - AEBEHEH
BEEIL D BHE - BB BEGEED
EFNETESUSBEFAEENMBE AR
FRXALEBEBARAR(TREXL]) - =
SEEBRMARKEESEESLENGSE
F#E - BB ABRPIBRIKRAE - 5
BFREX - HiIBRH2020F1 A1AE
20255 A31H AH65EA - FAMES
B 1,500,000 T D B & ([ & A R
B AMCEETIM R EEFE -

H2023%F4 A30HE © RESULEED B
ERERIESEWE - BRESIEHEIE
PR BB AR XL WM R R XL B &7
[ E DB RS DB aE AR ETTHFI# H
REOTHRBE - ZBEIHI2ERE UL
ERITHEARBE RS B & T E
FRMmEL ©

FERRERK

EHAEEARNRETERERLEENER
RIE AN R A S AR 20202 2023 F 1%
AIM—RIER DS BERZERPEE
ﬁo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

27. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

28.

(Continued)

Movement of the loan from a substantial shareholder during
the year is as follows:

27.

FERRER ()

FAXTERREFESBERLT

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At 1 January M1A1H 12,157 20,148

Repayment during the year FRER (11,500) (8,000)

Imputed interest expense (note 9) HEF S FAZ () 768 2,064
Charged/(credited) to other losses or ~ RMEEE B HE (Gt A)

(gains) at debt modification (note 8) HinEsiEsk (W) (FiiEs) 1,434 (2,055)

At 31 December M12A31H 2,859 12,157

As of 31 December 2023, the loans are repayable within one
year (2022: one year) and are carried an interest of 2% (2022:
2%) per annum. Along with the extensions, the Group also
made partial repayments before the agreed due dates. The
extensions and partial repayments of the loan qualify as loan
modifications. As a result, the Group recognised a loss of
HK$1,434,000 (2022: gain of HK$2,055,000) due to the
loan extensions and the early repayments.

MR2023F12A31H * ZEREAR—FR
B8 (2022%F :« —F ) WIRFFE2%(2022
F 1 2%)5H8E - BRIERIN - KEBIRRY
ERNHBEAMEL TP ER - ZEREBS
BRAERIERERES - AL - AKHE
AEREFRLKIRFEEERMBERER
1,434,000 7T (2022 £ : Uk 252,055,000
BIT) °

OTHER BORROWINGS 28. HbfEF
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHETT
Other borrowings HAB SR 5,800 -

The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
are repayable within one year. These borrowings carried a
fixed interest rate of 18% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Included in the borrowings was an amount of HK$3,000,000
guaranteed by the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A SHAREHOLDER/ 29. FEUR ~(f1)IRR R Ki/E 1 B FE1E %

30.

A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY/A DIRECTOR OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free, and repayable on
demand.

BRRMRE HEARES

BRAFAREER  RERLEREE -

SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the FARRRBRAEEINT -
year are as follows:
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Authorised: EE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000% & i% EI{E0.02/8 7T
HK$0.02 each (2022: 5,000,000,000 TBAL (20224 : 5,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) &% =A% EE0.0278 T & A% ) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE :
622,080,000 ordinary shares of 622,080,000% &% EI{E0.02/8 7T
HK$0.02 each (2022: 518,400,000 AL (20224 © 518,400,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) SREE.028 LT BM) 12,442 10,368
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. BRA(&)
The movements in authorised and issued share capital of FARRBEEMEBITRAEE T :
the Company during the year were as follows:
Number of Number of Share
authorised issued Issued premium
shares shares capital account Total
EERNEE CRORGHUE BETRA R EER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TEL TATL
At1 January 2022 20221 /1R 5,000,000,000 432,000,000 8,640 94,331 102,971
Issuance of new shares by way ~ MELE R R ETHIR -
of placing, net of issue costs ~ FABRETAAA - 86,400,000 1,728 6,048 7,776
At 31 December 2022 and 12022512 A31B K
1 January 2023 20235 1A1H 5,000,000,000 518,400,000 10,368 100,379 110,747
Issuance of new shares by way ~ MECE H #1731k
of placing, net ofissue costs ~~ FABREATRA - 108,680,000 2,074 12,079 14,153
At 31 December 2023 1202312318 5,000,000,000 622,080,000 12,442 112,458 124,900
On 3 April 2023, an aggregate of 103,680,000 (2022: 2023 4 A3 H - & #£103,680,000 A%

86,400,000) placing shares have been allotted and issued
with the net proceeds amounting to approximately HK$14.2
million (2022 : HK$7.8 million) at the issue price of HK$0.14

(2022 : HK$0.09) per placing share.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, Z£2023F 12 A31H L F &

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v) any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.

31.

BRERTE

RATR201591 A 23 B B4y — A IR 2
RN AmA B2 EEIREER
KOsk - BE

() EHAIRTRIFRTES - BFEAKE
ERIK B A RIMERPEL S FATES
SR E (T2 R

(i) XBAXXBHREFEAKEEMAR
BEREMEBRHFNEINEMIZTEA
(T ARE - 2RIEMAN)

(i) 7N S B0 {r] R ] Bl R AR B ] (RO
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< i 2 SRS ) (AR
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R

V) EFEERNBRATHAREEER
R R EAD A TR AR (a2
BE )

NAFIHREBRITIEME - WREA SR
RIFTA AR TE M ] T EITRRMD A
£ TEBEN2015F2A16H FTHEHA
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is
determined by the directors and shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share on the
date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (jii) the nominal value of the share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

All of the share options granted under the Scheme have
been cancelled as at 16 October 2019.

There were no share options granted during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 and outstanding number of
share option remained Nil as at each of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macau Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation. No
forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

32. RIKBEFETE

AEBERBEFEBRHIMERERFERDS
XEREBRERBGRI T RDEERNES
BIERVMEATERFE([REAE]) -
sRiE S B YR EEAEENREHR
FORREE - RIFREEETE - BRI RHE
‘BE D RIRZREE BB ARS% M Z5TE
TR R - AT A1,600/8 TR F R £
PR o [ARat BIE L AR 58 o

AEEXENRFIMBARNEREESH
BT o ) 1 FE REAR KA &) - IRt - ORPIER
B E B S A ERR IR A o K —MR
HESRETAREL - BEEREEXEASE
ARRFMBFEENEEREESHRX
NERKIE - AEBREAREN ZE—F
EREHERHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at
the date of this annual report, there was sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

33. EXEREE

AEBEEEEARAERANE B EBH6E
SARTER S T NBERLE - WEBEIL
B RRASEHMEERTRRER - K
SENEBRENEE —FHERFTE -

AEBHNEARBEERE MRS FEDY
FRENARANRBER ARBIGED - BREE
BATRA R b o

ARREFFFFRIAENERE - (ERUL
BEW—D EERREAKAREE
BRIEARBENRER - REESHHERRZ
& AREREBIKMNEE - BITHRND
REBBMD AR BEITHERXERREE
AR E AR -

RBEARRA RRAESHNER KREES
P RAFEHREH  RIBEGEM EM R
ARE - ARRERAPREEEITRG
25%H) R IV N RIFIRE o

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Total borrowings (note) EECEEIC =Y 8,659 12,157

Less: Bank balances and cash B RITER KRS (3,552) (1,908)

Net debt (EUr R 5,107 10,249
(Capital deficiency)/total equity RARER AL (BAREL),

attributable to owners of the Company #4258 (27,679) 31,889

Net debt to (capital deficiency)/equity  FAE (BB ), FESLL =X
ratio 0.18 0.32

Note: Total borrowings represent loan from a substantial shareholder
and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. €I A
Categories of financial instruments ST AR

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT T

Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at amortised cost LA SHR AT EM S RIE E 37,250 53,924

Financial liabilities mEaE
Amortised cost BESHRK AR 33,212 31,278

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a shareholder, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amount due to a related company, other
borrowings and loan from a substantial shareholder. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

cRRREREBBERBE

AEENTZESMTABERE —2RE
HIB - e — B A R IE AR R
B BHREMEYGRARIES  R1THE
BEAE BHMEMEMNFIR - BN—
R ARFIR HUEREEIERRE
Ko TR TEMFBENS M ERE -
HzEeR TABENERBRETSER
(EBRERMANERR - FERRNRBE
AR o WADFRRZF EBRBERR T X
;o - BEEEELERZFRR - BR
TSI A BIRAVE B R it
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca
same as the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed rate loans from a substantial
shareholder and other borrowings (see notes 27 and 28 for
details of the borrowings).

The Group is not exposed to any significant cash flow
interest rate risk which may materially affect the Group’s
results of operations in 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every
major customer periodically. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 22% (2022: 24%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 70%
(2022: 81%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. SRITE ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to past default experience and current past
due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

TREMREERRRBGE(E)

EERERR BE (A

EAAEBEERRERN—ZD » A&
EHERFEANDBEETR - ANEBH
ETESERRFBIREEREERRS
B 2 EFEIFARBERELLH N E AT
HRER P BEEE T oE - TRIBIEREE
FrEfRiEERR X E 5 ERFIENTEHE
EEBEMER - ET57R20234%F & 2022F
12 A31 BRI B R AP e 1 TR B AT

Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
InfEFEg 58
REAE BER FERE REEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET FHERT
At 31 December 2023 72023F12A31H
Trade receivables 2 5 W IR
Current BNHA 3,419 1.49% (51) 3,368
1 to 30 days past due BHI1E30H 554 7.76% (43) 511
31 to 90 days past due BHA31Z=90H 433 9.47% (41) 392
91 to 365 days past due #HA91 £365H 11,634 16.54% (1,924) 9,710
Over 365 days past due — B HAFAR365 H —
not credit impaired REBEERE 21,664 47.12% (10,209) 11,455
Over 365 days past due — 1 BB A365 A —
credit impaired HIREERE 3,502 100% (3,502) -
41,206 38.27% (15,770) 25,436
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

TREREERBERBER(E)

34. SR IAE(E)

EERERR BE (A

Gross  Weighted  Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount

hnwEFg (B
REAE BEX EERE RED¥E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEBT FET FBT
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
Trade receivables 2 ZRKGIE
Current BNHA 11,072 0.76% (84) 10,988
1 to 30 days past due #HR12=30H 2,211 1.09% (24) 2,187
31 to 90 days past due BHA31 =90 H 4,333 1.52% (66) 4,267
91 to 365 days past due #HI01E365H 12,590 2.67% (336) 12,254
Over 365 days past due — 61 BB A365 A —
not credit impaired AEREERE 7,400 41.88% (3,099) 4,301
Over 365 days past due — B HAEB365H —
credit impaired LR EERE 331 100% (831) -
37,937 10.39% (3,940) 33,997

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the bank balances and cash, other
receivables and deposits, amount due from a shareholder
and amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The credit risk on bank balances and cash is limited because
the counterparties are financial institutions and banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables
and deposits, amount due from a shareholder and amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
management assessed the expected losses individually by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience, general
economic conditions of the relevant industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. Based on the result of the foregoing, no impairment
loss was recognised during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 because the amount of ECL is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of

trade and other receivables during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 is as followings:

34. SR IAE(E)

TREREERBERBER(E)

=B BB R B E 1 (AR

R B E20234F K% 2022F 12 831 H ILF
B B REMBRFRNEREEBRERS
HEIT

Trade receivables

e ) 78

Total

a5t

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 202241 A1 A 41
Impairment loss recognised, net B R (E B 18 5 5 (f1RE10)

(note 10) 3,899
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 72022912 A31H K&2023%1 H1H 3,940
Impairment loss recognised, net B R (E B 18 5 58 (FfPRE10)

(note 10) 11,830
At 31 December 2023 A2023%F12H31H 15,770

At 31 December 2023, the Group has trade receivables
with gross amount of approximately HK$3,502,000 (2022:
approximately HK$331,000) being credit impaired since the
management of the Group considered these balances are
unlikely to be recoverable or partially recoverable.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

MR2023F12 A31H  AEBREAYD
3,502,000/ 7t (20224 : #9331,000/5 7T )
MNESEBFBBEREERE  RAZXE
EBEERERBT AW E KIS U E
2SR o

B E L /R

AEENBRRAENERR K REHRE
BB KUK EMEERZE - AR
HgRARRES  ULKBTZRHEE
MR AGRRE AR R R MR R AR

DELTHE -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. @I AE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cHEREEBERBE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEBELEE ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TREFMNELRFERSRE @ JIREXR
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date at SE AR B R KAV T B BiHIE o 4
which the Group can be required to pay. To the extent that FERBZEL + AR E AR F R 43
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is FrSRALIRERE ©
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.
More than
Weighted Within 1 year Total Total
average 1 year or but within undiscounted carrying
effectiverate  on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
T 15/ BiB1F REH

BRNE FRER  EORNEF REREBAE REAE
% HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

% FET TEx FEn FEx

2023 2023
Non-derivative financial ~ Jfi4SmERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMEMNFR 24,550 - 24,550 24,550
Loan from a substantial TEREER

shareholder 7 3,069 - 3,069 2,859
Other borrowings HipfE 18 6,844 - 6,844 5,800
Amount due to a related party  JE( BBEE 708 3 - 3 3
Total &3 34,466 - 34,466 33,212
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34. @I AE)
SREMREE B ERBER(E)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEETE M (E)
More than

Weighted Within 1 year Total Total
average 1 year or but within - undiscounted carrying
effective rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts

IETFI 1ER HBiR1F PN
ERMN= HIRER BAneE HRenssR FRE2E
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% TETL THET THET TATL

2022 20226
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfi4¢RERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFR 19,121 - 19,121 19,121
Loan from a substantial TEREER

shareholder 14 14,500 - 14,500 12,157
Total agt 33,621 - 33,621 31,278
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SMIAEATEFTE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities BEEMEEL LN FETENAEEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis HBEEREEHN L FE
Fair value hierarchy R FEER

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

MR2023%F [ 2022F12 A31H - KA AL
EEMEATFELEETENEREER
afE-

BAEEMEELF UL FETEBHEE
EZEEER A B A FE

F2023F 12 431 8 k202212 A31H -
AEBARASEHRATRN SR T A
FREHEREQAFEIESAER -
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

35.

BREETBELENREYHR

TREJIANKEEREADELNARE
e DERBRESNIFRE2EH -
BERHELNEENERSREIRK
RBeng CRIBERIBIBR/EAEE
FEReREXRB NAREZHNRSR
g o

Loan from a
Other substantial
borrowings  shareholder
(including (including
interest interest Lease
payable) payable) liabilities Total
HittfER FERREX
(BEEMHE) (BEEMFE) HEERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT TEL TEL
At 1 January 2022 2022F1 A1H - 20,148 50 20,198
Credited to other gains and losses at ~~ RMEBE TRt AL MR
debt modification (note 8) EBE(fizs) - (2,055) - (2,055)
Interest expense (note 9) A E) - 2,064 = 2,064
Financing cash flows HERERE - (8,000) (50) (8,050)
At 31 December 2022 and 2022512 A318 &
1 January 2023 20231818 - 12,157 - 12,157
Borrowing arising from acquisition of KE—RNBAREENER
a subsidiary 3,000 = - 3,000
Charged to other gains and losses at ~~ MEBEBRHREMAER
debt modification (note 8) BE(fis) - 387 - 387
Loss on early repayment of loan REEE-LIERTETH
from a substantial shareholder B - 1,047 - 1,047
Interest expense (note 9) EGERERY) 430 768 = 1,198
Borrowing raised SEER 3,000 - - 3,000
Repayment BN (200) (11,500) - (11,700)
Interest paid BfIFS (430) = = (430)
At 31 December 2023 120235127318 5,800 2,859 - 8,659
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36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are
disclosed in note 12.

Mr. Lui, a substantial shareholder and an executive director
of the Company, had granted an unsecured loan facility
of up to HK$40,000,000 during the available period which
will expire on 31 December 2024. On 27 June 2023, there
was the Fourth Extension Agreement which terminated the
unutilised loan facility with effective on 26 June 2023.The
Facility bears an interest of 2% per annum. Please refer to
note 29 for details.

36. EXEBLIRS

BREGEMBRRMBEEESIN  NEERF
NBNRTERRBEE RS

AEBETEEEBABRARBES -
S S F BRI 121K EE -

ARREBERERATER S LEEER
B (2024 F 12 A31 HEm ) IR &5
AJ 340,000,000/ T EE B E R E -
1202356 A27 8 » %MK K 173 A A
RIERBAEFRRE - B2023F6H26H
RBAERN o ZBMERFFIR2%ET B o 5157
2831 5E29 o
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37. LEASE LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a lease arrangement for a storage space for a
term of two years.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the years are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

37. HEEE

HZE2020F12A31 HILFE - REBBRTF
HEEBELH:  HBPAEMF -

HERENEREERFAZBNT

2023 2022

20234 2022%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 HRERAEE - 50
Accretion of interest recognised F AR FSIG M

during the year - =

Payments IR - (50)

Carrying amount at 31 December P12 A31 B EREE - =

Analysed into: DA
Current portion BIEAEL 75 - =
Non-current portion FERNEAEE 7 - —

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
entered into several short-term leases for office space. As
at 31 December 2023, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these office space is approximately HK$381,000
(2022: HK$216,000) and there is no new lease commitments
by the Group at the end of the reporting period but not yet
commenced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

38. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. TEMMBATFIE

General information of subsidiaries MEARIN—RER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of RBERRNAREEEMMB A RFFIBE
the reporting period are set out as follows: FEAT
Issued and
fully paid
Country/place of Class of shares share capital/
incorporation or  held/registered Proportion of ownership interest and voting registered
Name of subsidiary operation capital power held by the Company capital  Principal activities
BN BRTR
gEA%/ fishe,/ ARTENEERR BRRE/
HEARER % AfErR REELA AfER FTEE
2023 2022
20235 20028
Direct  Indirect Direct Indlrect
ER [ BR% R
% % % %
Grand Oceanus (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 - 100 - HK$1  Sales of luxury products
5. 8(ER)ERAR &R EER BT HEEGm
(Ocean Media (Hong Kong) Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 - 100 HKS$100  Sales of magazines and
provision of magazines
advertising service
BREELRERAR B Lk 100BT  HERSRERES
BERH
To Be Concepts Limited (‘TBC') ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - 67 - 67 HK$10,000  Provision of extibition and
trade show service
BUREERAR(BLRR)) Bk LER 1000087 REUREREFRERH
Tiance Cultural Communication ~ Macau Ordinary - 99 - 99 MOP100,000 Sales and distribution of
Limited (‘TCC") publications and sales
of print and online
advertising space
AR BRARAR 1§ Lk 100000%FT%  SHERETHM - LHE
(TRREER ) DRRE L RENE
Yantic Limited (*Yantic ) Hong Kong Ordinary - 50.1 - - HKS$5,005,010  Online sales of beauty and
(note) cosmetics products
REERAR(ME) (M) B4 LER 500501087 M LEEXAR{E
Note: Yantic Limited is a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in MiaE : FRIEER A R AR RR BB M AL AT
Hong Kong. The subsidiary was acquired on 1 April 2023. BRAF] - MBI 2023F 4 A1 AUk
i o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RAFR AR EN B QG B BITERERS
the end of the year. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

38. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the directors result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

38. XTEMBATFEGE)

MR 2 BB — RE R ()

FREFINEARFMBLR - ARAEER
B IBREAEERELEE -EFR
5 REEMIMBARNFIEHERFE
BRILE o

HEEAH R ERHIFH 2 ENE A A
HYFF &

TNRINTAEEEE AR ERAIE
2 EMBRRMFSE :

interest:
Proportion of ownership
Place of interest and voting
incorporation and place power held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business the Company non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
NG
NEERER
i) NGIEE LR 3Lt B i S 3t B REELA PEREFEREZNER Rtz RER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
20235 20226 20235 20226 20235 20226
TBC Hong Kong 67.0% 67.0% (128) (57) (491) (363)
B E 00
TCC Macau 99.0% 99.0% (635) 17) (435) 200
REX B R
Yantic Hong Kong 50.1% - (1,079) - (1,079) -
Rig B

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

38. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. XEMBLRFE(E)
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MEA M —RER(E)
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has FEEAHIZREZWHEDER B LT
material non-controlling interest (Continued) HI#18 (48
TBC TCC Yantic 2023 2022
REXAE

BHERE =% iR 20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FH&TT FAET FH&TT FHT FH&TT

Current assets MBEE 249 24,281 2,351 26,881 2,724
Non-current assets FRBEE 23 1,017 3 1,043 63
Current liabilities nEEE (1,760) (70,682 4,516)  (76,958) (3,8898)
Net liabilities BE%5E (1,488)  (45,384) (2,162) (49,034)  (1,101)
Equity attributable to RAEHER AEIE

owners of the Company 1z (997) (44,949 (1,083)  (47,029) (738)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIZEA%#EZS (491) (435) (1,079) (2,005) (363)
Revenue sk = 9,162 11,423 20,585 5,308
Expenses BsZ 387) (72,732)  (11,777) (84,896) (5,482
Loss and total BB R 2 E R B

comprehensive expense (887) (63,570) (354)  (64,311) (174)
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38. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. XEMBLRFE(E)
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued) MEA M —RER(E)
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has FEEAHIZREZWHEDER B LT
material non-controlling interest (Continued) HI#18 (48
TBC TCC Yantic 2023 2022
REXAE

BHERE =% iR 20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FH&TT FAET FH&TT FHT FH&TT

Loss attributable to owners 2N2A Bl A A FE(L
of the Company E5ta (259) (62,935) 725 (62,469) (117)

Loss attributable to the IR A T R (G B 1B

non-controlling interest (128) (635) (1,079) (1,842) (67)
Loss and total FABBEREERAE

comprehensive expense  42%A

for the year (887) (63,570) (354) (64,311) (174)

Net cash outflow from KEEBASHRS
operating activities TR - 12,150 (1,407) 10,743 (254)

Net cash outflow from KEERBAMERE
investing activities T FER = - (4) 4 (525)

Net cash outflow from BEEESMERE
financing activities TR - (10,500) (200)  (10,700) (50)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) IR&RA CRit)
FEE - 1,650 1,611) 39 (829)
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

39. AAFHBRRRREREEED

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AARBMBMRRE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A R AR 105 105
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSEH B A RIZRIE - 24,371
Amount due from a shareholder JFE UL A% BR FRIE 539 539
Prepayment and other receivables — TB1~ ZRI8 & E {th FEUG FRIB 6,012 6,012
Cash and cash equivalents R MRSEEY 147 147
6,698 31,069
Total assets EEHE 6,803 31,174
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves attributable Z<2 T#H A E{L
to owners of the Company BEAXRHE
Share capital &N 12,442 10,368
Reserves e (23,384) (3,571)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity  (&EZAEAl) HEzsE%E (10,942) 6,797
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 ;22023412 431 H I F &

39. AAFFBRRRE HEED (8

Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ZADEHBEARRIER(E)
(Continued)
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THIT
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REAE
Financial guarantee contract MIERRER 188 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHTE R RFIE 6,046 3,329
Accruals and other payables FERTE B & H At fE S 5108 8,652 8,891
Loan from a substantial shareholder = ZRXE &K 2,859 12,157
Total liabilities BEHRE 17,745 24,377
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (EAE4l) HEXREBEHE
and liabilities (6,803) 31,174
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) EEFE (11,047) 6,692
Total assets less total liabilities EEAERSEESE (10,942) 6,797
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company

39. AAFFBRRRE HEED (8

(b) ADEHME

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE EXfE RitEB CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AL FAEL TAL
At 1 January 2022 R20225131A 94,331 7,501 (118671) (16,749)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNEEENELEE
income for the year - - 7,130 7,130
Issuance of new shares by way PARLE A B THR -
of placing, net of issue costs MBRBEITA 6,048 - - 6,048
At 31 December 2022 and 2022128318 K
1 January 2023 2023F1A81AH 100,379 7,591 (111,541) (3,571)
Loss and total comprehensive FRNBERZERZBE
expense for the year - - (31,892) (31,892)
Issuance of new shares by way PABLE A\ BT
of placing, net of issue costs MBRBEITHA 12,079 - - 12,079
At 31 December 2023 202312318 112,458 7,591 (143,433) (23,384)
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40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 April 2023, the Group acquired 50.1% of the issued
share capital of Yantic Limited for a total consideration of
HK$1. Yantic Limited is engaged in online sales of beauty
and cosmetics products during the year. The acquisitions
are for the purpose of diversification of business and product
portfolio and create synergies with the existing advertising
business of the Group.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Yantic
Limited acquired as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

40. WE—EKRBEAT

720234 A18 - AEBUABEREIET
WEETRIE B R A F150.1% 2 BT © ik
BEERARNFAREELHEB LHE
EXBERME - WBTEES R REM
HEEZTL  YRAKBEBRAREEEK
EE M ERE o

WEERERR AR A #AIEERPIATER
EREE Rz A FERNT

Total
st
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: Frus i F & -
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB NEE 1
Inventory 7E 2,359
Trade and other receivables B 5 &AM EYGRIA 259
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 1,735
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFRIA (1,842)
Amount due to a director of Yantic Limited ~ JEft—{ZfRIEER A 7l EEKIE )
Amount due to the then shareholder of JERFRIEE R A A E B IR R 08
Yantic Limited (1,316)
Other borrowings HABEK (3,000)
(1,807)
Non-controlling interests FEVE il R 2 902
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 17) WRE E AR R B (I EE17) 905
Satisfied by: SANI=IE
Cash Be -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEERFREMA
Cash consideration paid ENREERE —
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WHER S KR EEY 1,735
1,735
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 & 22023512 A31 B ILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

41.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables acquired is
HK$259,000. None of these receivables had been impaired
and expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Yantic Limited is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the distribution
of the Group’s products in the new markets and the
anticipated future operating synergies from the combination.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

Yantic Limited contributed approximately HK$11,321,000
and HK$354,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss for
the year respectively for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2023, total Group revenue for the year would have been
HK$23,668,000, and loss for the year would have been
HK$75,102,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
the revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2023, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2024.

40. WE—EMEA T (&)

41.

FrNBEE S R EMmEWRREBEZ AFES
259,00078 7T © B4 1t 5 B W S R E
N IEHRE AL E] -

WIBTRIEBRARIFELNEE - BN
AEBERETMSEMEBAHEEZRK
LEBEREDMERRERGE S - AH
BEE R A E A AR HRAE®R -

BB RBEERE ARIEME - RE
ERARMEASEFRERERBERL
11,321,000/ 7T %.354,000/8 7T, ©

WU EEFA 20231 A1 AR - AEBEFE
4R 25 1% 523,668,000 7T ¢ M EE2E
1818 575,102,000/8 7T ° #HE B FHE M
A% - WIEEUEEMR2023F1 A1HE
RZIBRTAEBERETER 2 KE Rk
SRS 2 IEE - M EAERREEZ
FEA ©

eSS B HRR

FAEMEHMRN2024FE328HEEST S
b MR T o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

R FRBHE

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31ALEE
In HK$’'000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AFABTHIR 20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
(Restated)
(&=75)
Revenue ek 23,550 34,645 61,128 29,866 20,838
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBAT(EER), %M (74,661) 10,030 22,851 (8,025) (39,527
Total comprehensive income/  FAZERZE
(expenses) for the year (Ax) 4 (74,661) 10,030 21,196 (3,036)  (41,014)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENREEHBE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALLEE
In HK$’000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
LAFBTHIR 20234 20224 20214F 20204 20194F
(Restated)
($E5)
Total assets BEME 41,025 63,860 49,779 30,756 16,626
Total liabilities BERRE (70,709)  (32,134) (35,859) (38,032) (27,079)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfR) BETHE (29,684) 31,726 13,920 (7,276)  (10,453)
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